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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE. BARINC,O
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JIINE 2021

L KEY ENTTTY INFORMA TION AIID MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information
The Moi Tcachcrs Collcgc-Baringo was established under the Basic Education Acq 2013. The
entity is domiciled in Kenya. The college operates under the Ministry of Education state
department of Education.

(bl Prlncipal Actlvitles

The principal activity of the institution is found in its mission and vision statements as below:

Vision

A centre of Excellence in pre-service and in-service Teacher Training.

Mission

To train and produce competent teachers who are positively responsive to their learners and professional
demands in Kenya and globally.

Core Values

Moi Teachers College-Baringo is an integral part of the society and endeavours to exhibit high professional
and social standards. Core values are the fundamental values of Moi Teachers College-Baringo that lays the
foundation on which the college operates. A core vatue defines the culture and shapes the character of Moi
Teachers College-Ba ringo.

The staff undertakes their duties in accordance with Teacher's Service Commission code of Regulations for
Teachers (2015) and the Code of conduct and Ethics.

Guided by our vision and mission we shall uphold the foltowing values at atltimes. These core values are:

o Courtesy
o Teamwork
o tntegritl
o Efficiency
o Professionalism
. Accountability
o Transparency.

(cf Key Management

The entity's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

r Board of Managementr Accounting officer- Chief Principal. Management team
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( d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 202i.

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The board has the overall mandate of ensuring the sound rnanagernent of the college. This includes:

Approving budget and procurement plan, approving policies, strategic plan, reviewing management
implementation of strategies, policies and plans, risk assessment and management and recruitment of staff.
For effective operation of the Board of Management through clearly mandated board committees,
accompanied by monitoring and reporting systems, each standing board of management committee has

specific roles and responsibilities as set out in corporate governance staternent.

1. Chief Principal Lorraine Mukoya

2. Deputy Principal Kiprotich Bittok

3 Dean of Curriculum Laban Kiptalam

5 Dean of Students Julia Audi

5 Head of Finance David C. Maiyo

7 Head of Procurement Pennedy Toroitich

ill
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rEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued|

(ff Entlty Headquarterc
Moi Teachers College-Ba ringo

P.O. Box 348-30400
Kabarnet Kenya

El EnUty Contacts
Telephone: 0705 469 456

E-mail: moittcbaringo@yahoo.com
Website: www. moitcbaringo.ac.ke

(h) Entlty Bankers
Kenya Commercial Bank
Kabarnet branch
P.O Box 175-30400
Kabarnet
Account Number.110364t7 43
Account Number.110354181O
Account Number.1107906423
Account N umber. 1232908398

( i) lndependent Auditors
Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

[] Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box AOtLz
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

lv



Member's Name Brief Description

Designation: Board Charrman

Name: Profl Moses timo

Profession: Professor of Biochemistry

Prof Moses Limo was bom on ld January 1954. He is currently the
Chairman of the Board ofManagement ofMoi Teachers College-Baringo.
He is a professor of Biochemistry at Egerton University. He is a holder of
Bsc.Msc and PhD. from the University ofNairobi. He has extensive
experience in governance matters having served in various administrative
positions in the public service.

Designation: Member

Name: Dr.Anne Jerotich Michura

Profession ; Educationist

,
.:l'

\

I

Designation. Member

Name: Rodah Rutto

Profession: Lawyer

lvft. Rhoda Rutto was born on July 1982. She is currently the
chairperson audit committee.She is an Advocate of the High Court of
Kenya. She holds a Master of Laws degree from the Univesity ofDar-e-
salaam (Tanzania) in constitutional Law and Human Rights, Postgraduate
Diploma in Law from the Kenya School oflaw and a Bachelors of Law (Moi
University). She is a member of both the Law of Society of Kenya and East
Africa Law Society. She has also earned professional certificates in the areas
of Constitutional Law, Human fughts, Conflict Resolutiorq Leadership and
Company Secretarial duties.
She has extensive experience of l6 years in legal matters.

MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE- BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

2. THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Dr. Anne Jerotich Garry Michura was born on April,l968. She holds PhD
in Zoology @ntomology) Chuka University, Kenya, Masters of Philosophy in
Zoology ( Agricultural Entomology) Moi University, Kenya, Bachelors Bed
Science (Botany/Zoology) Egerton University,Kenya.
She is a publisher. She has experience of2l years.

v
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Designation: Member

Name: SymonYatich Kimengich

Profession. Administrator

YatichMr Simon was onbom 1December 962 lsHe thecurrently
andfinance,chairperson osesprocurement committee.general purp

holdHe S lnDegree andEconomics, Science abGeography political (Panj
-India hasHe workUniversity ), overof J lnexpenence fieldsdifferentyears

Designation: Member

Name: Eleen Limo

Profession : Educationist.

degree in Counselling Psychology (Mt. Kenya University), Bachelor of
Education in Guidance and counselling (Moi university). She has 39 years of
experience as a classroom teacher, Curriculum developer and Teacher
advisory in education.
She is a professional counsellor and accredited mediator.

Mrs.Eleen Limo was born on December, 1959. She holds a Masters

Designation: I{ember

Name: Hezron Rutto

Profession: Snr. Deputy County

Commissioner

December, 1978. He holds MBA Strategic

Management (Kenyatta university), Bachelor of Arts (university of Nairobi).

Diploma in Public Administration (KSG). He has extensive experience of
over l3 years in public administration.

Mr.Hezron Rutto was born on I
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Designation: Member

Name: Philemon Chelelgo

Profession: Educationist

,} f;
Designation: Member

Name: Raphael K.Bolei

Profession; Educationist

I[r Raphael K.Bo lei was born on I December I 978 He ts currently the
chairperson academic standards, quality and envlronment committee.He holds
bachelors of Education (Science) -Double Mathematics (The Catholic
University ofEastern Africa) currently posr graduate student MA Sociology-
Projea Management and community Development. He has experience of l7
years as an educationist.

Designation: Member

Name: Evans K. Cherogony

Profession: Public Health Offrcer

Mr. Evans Kipkemboi Cherogony was bom in 21.12.1975. He holds Masters
in Business administration (Kisii University, Bachelor of science degree in
Environmental Health Science ( Mt. Kenya University), Diploma in
Environmental Health Science/Public Health (KMTC). He has experience of
18 years in Public Health.

MOI TEACIIERS COLLEGE. BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

I\rIr. Philemon Kiptukyo Chelelgo was born in 1955. He holds Bachelor of
Education (Vocational/Technical) fiom MoGILL University (Canada),
diploma in Agricultural Education & Extension, Egerton University.
He has completed course work in Entrepreneurship (Moi University MPHIL.
He has a work experience of 31 years as an educationist.
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Designation: Chief Principal

Name: Lorraine Mukoya

TSC number 323433
She was born in 30m Marctq 1969.
Mrs. Lonaine Mukoya holds Med in planning &Management (MMUST),
Bachelor of Education (History and CRE) from univeisity of Nairobi. senior
Management course (KSG-Baringo campus) and certifiiate in ppRA.she
has an experience of30 years. 20 years in teaching and lOyears in
management.

Chief Principal

Designation: Member

'Name: Dr.Gladys Mengich

lProfession: Medical Doctor

Medical Education, Master's degree Medical Education from University of
Dundee (Scotland- uK); Bachelor of Arts @sychology & communication)-
University of Nairobi, Physiotherapy KMTC;
Senior Lecturer in MMUST and KMTC. physiotherapist in MoH; involved in
teaching and research activities and development of competency based
curriculum in MMUST and KMTC- Health professions Education programs.
She has experience of30 years as a medic.

Dr Gladys Mengich was born on ist Jan. I 966. She is a holder ofphD

Designation: Member

Name: AIex Kipsang Chelimo

f rofession : Accountant

-._

was born in ---years. He is a holder of KATC II
and CPA 1. Currently, a businessman at Baringo county. He is an
immunization champion.
He has experience of 1 5 years.

Mr. Alex Kipsang Chelimo

vlll
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Mr. Joseph Chepkonga was born in 11111969. He holds bachelor of Educati
science (Egerton University). He has experience of 29 years as an
educationist.

Rev. Zacharia Cheboi Chirchir was born on 1s Jan.l952. He holds Master of
Arts- Administrative studies with specialization in organizational Leadership
(Briercrest Bibtcal seminary) Bachelor of science in Bible (Lancaster Bibre
College). He has experience of over 40years as a Clergy.

Designation: Member

Name: Joseph Chepkonga

Profession: Educationist

Designation: Member

Name: Rev.Zacharia Chirchir

Profession: Clergy

lx
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

NAME OF TITE EMPLOYEE BRIEF DESCRIPTION

Designation : Chief Principal
Name: Lorraine

TSC number 323433
Mrs. Lorraine Mukoya holds Med in planning &Management
(MMUST), Bachelor of Education (History and cRE) from University
of Nairobi, Senior Management Course (KSG-Baringo Campus) and
Certificate in PPRA.She has an experience of 30 yeis,20 y"ar, in
teaching and lOyears in management.

Chief Principal

Mr. KiprotichBittokholds Med in planning and administration (Nairobi
University)Bachelor oEducation (Arts) from uoN and ou", i7 years of
teaching experience.

Deputy Principal

TSC number 347186

Name: Laban Kiptallam
Designation :Dean of Curriculum

Mr.Laban Kiptallam is the Dean of Curriculum on an acting capacity
He holds Bachelor of Education (History and CRE) from Moi 

-

University.Hehas 27 years of teaching experience.

Dean of Curriculum

TSC number 348487

Name: Julia Audi
Designation: Dean of students

';*e

\

\
TSC number 291627
Mrs.Julia Audi is the dean of student on acting capacity. She holds
Bachelor of Education (CRE) from Kenyatta University. She has 32
years of teaching experience.

Dean of Students

x
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Finance Ofiicer

Personal Number : MTC-B/98/03 3

David C.Maiyo is a holder of Bachelor of Business Administration
(Finance & Accounting) from Great Lakes University of Kisumu ,CpA
I I and Senior Management Course (KSG- Baringo Campus) .He has an
Experience of3l years in accounting and finance field.

rl
Designation: Finance Oflicer
Name:David C. Maiyo

Designation: Bursar
Name: CPA Rose Kimaiyo

Bursar

Personal Number: MTC-B/08/056
Rose Kimaiyo is a holder of Bachelor of Business Administration
(Finance and Accounting) from Kenya Methodist University, CPAK
Member No. 24935, she has completed course work in MBA, Egerton
University, and Senior Management Course (KSG-Baringo Campus).
She has experience of 14 years in accounting and finance field.

Designation. Procurement Offi cer
Name; PennedyToroitich

Procurement oflicer

Ms.PenedyToroitich is a member of KISM; He holds a diploma in
Purchasing and Supplies Management. He has an experience of 6 years
in procurement field.

xt
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) 4. CIIAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
r The Board is the supreme governing body of the Moi Teachers College-Baringo. lts core mandate is to oversee the

activities and operations of the college on behalf of the Government. ln this, the Board is concerned with the setting
of policies for the institution and to follow up on how such policies are being executed by nranagement. The Board is
responsible for the approval of the budget, procurement plan and the performance contract. The Board is also
responsible for the selection and placement of the support staff on behalf of the Governmernt. The board aims at
encouraging co-operation and collaboration among all stakeholders for effective representation in governance and
management of the college. The board have decentralized its activities through formation of sub-committees such
as; finance, procurement and general purposes committee; academic standards, quality and environment
committee; discipline, ethics and integrity committee; audit committee; and human rights and student welfare
committee.

The formation of the committees is in compliance with the Basic Education Act, 2013. Through the laid down
policies, the Board enhances the culture of democracy, accountability, and transparency in the governance and
management of the college by ensuring effective and efficient training; ensuring the participation of and
consultation with the stakeholders at the county and nationai level.

ln the financial year 2O2O/2O21,, the college programmes were adversely affected due to abrupt closure as
occasioned by the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic. ln the second quarter of the zozo/20271y, the Covid -19
positivity rate declined and face to face learning resumed which culminated in taking the final PTE examination by
last cohort of students. Due to the Pandemic the board had to procure tents to be used by students to enable the i.s
metre rule of social distancing and being in compliance with the Ministry of Health protocols;.

ln the year under review, the college experienced a lot of challenges as the Ministry of Education did not undertake
the selection and placement of teacher trainees. As a result of this the college have been har/ing serious financial
challenges in running the operations of the college.

However, in the fourth quarter of the financial year, the Ministry of Education nominated 6 teacher training colleges
to absorb approximately 1100 students who had successfully applied for the diploma programs.

Luckily, our college was among the identified colleges .The 2020 PTE results were received in college on ZB/01,/21.
After analysis of the results, it vuas noted that the 2020 PTE ;'esults vyeie the best in the i'ecerit years. The coltege
posted a mean score of 4.507-a remarkable improvement frorn 5.639 postecl in 2019.

I am pleased to report that we have made significant progress with the objectirres we set our:selves and this is
clearly evident in the much improved performance of the college.

On behalf of the board of management, I would like to thank all the stakeholders, management and staff for their
hard work, creativity and commitment as we navigated the uncertainty and challenges of the global pandemic.

t{y#w
Frof. Moses Limo

Chairman of the Board
tr9th September,2O21..

xll
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6. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

section 81 subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer to include
in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity's performance against predetermined
objectives.

Moi Teachers College-Baringo has 4 strategic pillars and objectives within current Strategic plan for the Financial
Year2079- 2020. These strategic pillars are as foilows:

Pillar 1: Conduct training programs based on Diploma in Primary Teacher Education and Diploma in Early
Childhood Teacher Education curriculum

Pillar 2: To construc! modernize infrastructure and improve physical environment

Pillar 3: To enhance and diversify income generating (lG) projects

Pillar 4: To enhance safety and security in the college

Pillar 5: To enhance leadership and governance

Moi reachers college-Baringo develops its annual work plans based on the above 5 piilars. Assessment of the
Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The MoiTeachers Coltege-Baringo
achieved its performance targets set for the FY z1z}/zlperiod for its 3 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram
below:

Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key

Fer.formance

lndicatorc

Activities Achlevements

Pillar / 3 To enhance and diversify income generating (lG) projects

-Establish an income
generating

management

committee

- Diversify income
-generati ng. p roiects.to
include zero grazing,

biogas, bakery, Posho

milland horticulture.

-Minutes

-lists of areas

-Architectural
plans

'BQs

-Budget

-Structures

-Feasibility

studies for the
project

-ldentification of
sites

- Design and

construction of
the structure

-Operationalize

- lncome

-lncreased

lncome

-Creation of
employment

- Food security

- Practical

learning

Pillar / 4 To enhan ce safety and security in the college

-Enhance fencing -Proper fence - Demarcate

- Type of fencing

-Secure

environment

xv
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-lnstall modern security
gadgets and programs

Kei-apple
(Kayaba)

Chain link

-Gadgets

(Biometric kit

-Pass words)

-Programs

Receipts

Delivery notes

-Rumps

-Doors and

windows
opening outside

-ldentify and

fence

- Frequent

repairs

- lnstall gadgets

-ldentify areas of
sensitizat,on

-Resource

persons

- Fire drills

-Serene

envlronment

lmproved skills

in disaster

management

-Peaceful co-

existence

Pillar / 5 To enhance leadership and governance

-Capacity build the
Board of Management

-Good

leadership

and
governance

Handbook

Minutes

Budget

- Meetings

-'Build capacity

Management

skills

-Motivated
managers

-lmproved

discipline

-Efficient

college

management

xvl
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNA}ICE STATEMENT
The current Board of Management was appointed into office in 27th January , ZOIO and upon appointment .
immediately took charge of their mandate to steer the college forward through application of best governance
practices and standards.

The Board of Management have been forging a united front in confronting challenges facing the institution that
started in 1991 and then grew consistently.

One of the core values is effective corporate governance. There are benefits of a properly implemented effective
corporate governance system as it provides stakeholders confidence.

The College has built its operations on very strong corporate governance principtes based on the application of
high and consistent ethical standards in its relationships with all customers, employees and other stakeholders.
This is consistent with the institutions core values of effective corporate governance that has ted to a strong
commitment to conduct business in accordance with best business practices based on principles of transparency,
accountability and responsibility, monitoring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, risk management,
appropriate checks and balances and the delivery to commitments to all stakeholders.

Ethical leadership and integrity, socio-environmental responsibility and determination of group strategy are the
key principles that are taken into account while setting governance standards for the group. The College has kept
abreast with international developments in corporate governance for the promotion of enhanced transparency,
integrity and rule of law.

The Board of Management is the representative of the stakeholders, and has the duty of validating financiat
results and the review of college performance, protecting assets and nurturing the next generation of teaders. The
board is all responsible for ensuring proper and sound corporate governance within the College. Good corporate
governance is thereTore a fundamental part of the culture and the business practices of the College.

A) ROLE OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
The functions of the Board of Management of a basic education institution shall be to-
(a) Promote the best interests of the institution and ensure its development;
(b) Promote quality education for all students in accordance with the standards set under this Act or

any other written law;
(c) Ensure and assure the provision of proper and adequate physical facitities for the institution;
(d) Manage the institution's affairs in accordance with the rules and regulations governing the

occupational safety and health;
(e) Advise the County Education Board on the staffing needs of the institution;
(f) Determine cases of students' discipline and make reports to the County-Education Board;
(g) Prepare a comprehensive termly report on all area of its mandate and submit the report to the County

Education Board;
(h) Facilitate and ensure the provision of guidance and counseling to all learners;
(i) Provide for the welfare and observe the human rights and ensure safety of the students, teachers and

non teaching staff at the institution;
(j) Encourage a culture of dialogue and participatory democratic governance at the institution;
(k) Promote the spirit of cohesion, integration, peace, tolerance, inclusion, elimination of hate speech,

and elimination of tribalism at the institution;
(l) Encourage the learners, teachers and non teaching staff and and the community, and

other stakeholders to render voluntary services to the institution;
(m) Allow reasonable use of the facilities of the institution for community, social and other lawful

purposes, subject to such reasonable and equitable conditions as it may determine including the
charging of a fee;
(n) Administer and manage the resources of the institution;

xvlt
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(o) Receive, collect and account for any funds accruing to the institution;
- (p) Recruit, employ and remunerate such number of non-teaching staff as may be required by the

institution in accordance with this Act; and
{q) Perform any other function to facilitate the imptementation of its functions under this Act or any written
law.

B) COMPOSTTTON OF THE BOARI)
The Board shall consist of a chairperson and eight other members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in
accordance with the provisions of Education Act, 2013. The chairperson shall serve for a term of four years and
shall be eligible for re-appointment for one further term of four years.The members shall serve for a term of three
years and shall be eligible for re-appointrnent for one further term of three years.

The Board shall ensure that it comprises a diverse mix of skills and expertise critical for effective
oversight on the management of the College. This shall be underscorrd by ensuring that each member has
the requisite skill and access to the necessary tools required for their effective pertbrmance.

Chairperson
The chairman's role is to ensure that the whole board is one and conduct business with professionalism.
The chair therefore takes the lead in guiding members in discharging their mandate with clear boundaries and
rules.

i. Boartl rneetings
The board develops a calendar of meetings on annual basis. ln the year under review the board held two full
board meetings, four executive meetings, 6 administration and finance meetings and two academic meetings.

All committees of the board are tasked with the responsibility of reporting to the full board.

ii. Legal audit
Annual financial statement is prepared and presented to the board for discussion and approval. The board sits
to discuss and approve annual budget every June of each year, all issues arising from prior discussion of the
budget by administration and finance committee are discussed and resolved during this meeting any
corrections and amendments are then made and approved before the budget is finally approved for next
financial year.

cl BoARD COMMTTTEES

p) The Board may discharge any of its responsibilities through Board Comrnittees appointed from
Bmongst its members subject to the applicable laws.
b) The Board has establisheci the fbllowing commiftees;

(a) Administration and Finance committee;
(b) Academic committee;
(c) Audit committee;

(a) Administration and Finance committee;
i) Syrnon K. Yatich(Chairperson)
ii) Eleenlimo (member)
iii) Rev. Zacharia Chirchir (member)
iv) Alex Chelirno (rnember)
v) Lorraine Mukoya (Secretary

xvllr
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(b) Academic committee;

D Raphael Bolei (Chairperson)
ii) Dr. Gladys Mengich(member)
iii) Philemon Chelelgo (member)
iv) Lorraine Mukoya (Secretary)

(c| Audit committee

i) Roda Rutto (Chairperson)
ii) Dr.anneMichura (member)
iii) Evans Cherogony (member)
iv) Lorraine Mukoya (Secretary)

c) The Board shall appoint the Chairpersons of the Committees and shall approve appropriate terms of
reference for the Committees.
d) Reporting obligations:

i) The Commiuees shall report to the Board on mafiers referred to it by the Board and on the
proceedings following each meeting of the committee. The report shall include findings, matters
identified for specific recommendation to the Board, action points and any other issues as deemed
appropriate.

ii) The committees shall liaise with each other in so far as it is expedient to effectively perform their
different roles.

e) The Board remains collectively responsible for the decisions of any committee and shall review the
effectiveness and performance of committees annually.

Appointment and Remuneration of Board members
a) The Board shall consist of members as shall be determined from time to time and subject to regulatory
requirements. The Board Nominating Commiuee shall recommend members of the board of management
for appointment by the Cabinet Secretary for Education as per regulatory requirements.
b) The Chairman of the Board shall be appointed by the Cabinet Secretary for Education.
c) The number of Board members shall be as determined by the Basic Education Act,2073.
f) The Board shall establish and approve allowances for the board members.
g) The Board of management allowances shall be adequately disclosed in the full board meeting(s) in line
with the financial ability of the college as regulated by the Basic Education , Act2073.

D) BOARDINDEPENDENCE

To enhance independence, the Boaril Shdll avail an environment that ensures the members are criticeil and
independent of one another so as to promote independent and objective judgment.

E) ACCESS TO INT'ORITATION AND INDEPENDENT ADVTCE.

a) The Board rnay fiom time to time requile independent legal, financial, Bovornance or other expert
advice. To facilitate this, the Board shall ensure members obtain external advice, as may be required, at
the College's expense and shall invite senior management to provide technical advice as needed.
b) The Board shall establish procedures to allow its members irccess to relevant, accurate and complete
information and professional advice in order to discharge its dufies effectively.
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] F) BOARD TRAINING

a) Each Board member shall participate in an_induction program that is tailored to effectively orient the
member to the College's business- strategiv. objectives. poliiies. procedures. operations. senior
nlanagement and operating envirorunent. The induction shall also include ail tie necessary information
that shall be required by a member for effective perfonnance on the Board. New Board mernbers shall
also be introduced to their fiduciary duties and risponsibilities as well u, uny other aspects that are unique
to the College.
b) Board members should have a clear understanding of their role in corporate govemance and be able to
exercise sound and objective judgrnent about the affairs of the College.

G) BOARD EVALITATTON

a) For improved Board effectiveness, the Board shall carry out an assessment of its performance the
performance of the chairperson. that of its committees. individual members and the-chief principal.
b) The Board shall disclose whether evaluation of the Board, the chairperson and the principal has been
undertaken in the annual report and financial statements of the College

H) ROLE OF THE CHAIR AND SECRETARY

The Chair is appointed by the Cabinet Secretary for Education. The Secretary who is the Chief principal
shall keep the Chair infonned about the operations of the college.
The Role of the Chair shali be to:
a) Provide leadership to the Board and ensure its effectiveness in all aspects of its role. The Chair shall set
the Board agenda with the assistance of the Chief Principal who is the 3ecretary.
b) Facilitate the etl'ective contribution of and encourage constructive relatrons between board of
management.

c) Monitor attendance at Board meetings,
d) To ensure that there is a robust process for Board succession and that a current pool ofcandidates has
been identified;
e) Develop the strategy of the College, together with the Chief Prrncipal, and ensure the Board is tirlly
appraised and has the opportunity to debate the strategic direction of ihe College;
f) Put in place and maintain an effective delegation of authority structure to provide effective management
and control over the College's business with the assistance of ihe principal:
g) Communicate effectively with the College stakeholders. The stakeholders include, rvhere applicable,
regrrlators, governments, students, statf and the communrties within which the College operates;
h) Together with the Chief Principal, to ensure that the College commumcates effeciively with,
stakeholders, government agencies, financial institutions, the media, the public and any..l.ruri special
interest groups who have a legitimate concern or involvement ivith the operation of the College;
i) Ensure that the views of the stakeholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;
j1 Chair the Full Board Meetings and ail other stakeholder meetings of the College;
k) Together with the Chief Principal ensures that the College operates to the highest standards of
corporate governance;
1) Manage the training needs of each board member and ensure development;
rn) Ensure the Board undertakes continuous development in order to enhance govemance practices within
the Board itself and in the interest of the Coilege.

fhe role of the Secretary shall be to:
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a) Ensure that the policies spelt out by the Board in the College's overall corporate stategy are
implemented;
b) Identify and recommend to the board competent officers to manage the operations of the College. ln
the fulfilment of this duty, the Secretary should ensure that the CollJge's human resources policyls
adhered to;
c) Co-ordinate the operations of the various departments within the College;
d) Establish and maintain efficient and adequate internal control systems;
e) le1ien and implement the necessary management information systems in order to facilitate efficient

. andeffective .comm unication within . the College.
f) Ensure that the Boutg is frequently and adequately appraised about the operations of the College
through presentation of relevant board papers, which must cover, but are not limited to, the following
areas:

i) Actual performance compared with the past performance and the budget together with
explanations ofall the variances.

ii) StudentPerformance
iii) Income and expenses.
iv) Income: sources and distribution outline.
v) Report on violation of laws and remedial activities undertaken to ensure cornpliance with the

guidelines.
vi) Any other duties as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

.I) D.UTmS.0F BO.trRD Mf,MBERS

Each Board member shall have the fiduciary duty to-
a) Exercise a reasonable degree ofcare, skill and diligence;
b) Act in good faith and in the best interests of the College and not for any other purpose;
c)-Act-honestly.at all.times-and-must notplace themselves.in.a situation where.personaljnterestsconflict
with those of the College;
d) Exercise independent judgrnent at all times,
e) Devote sufficient time to carry out their responsibilities and enhance their skills;
f) Promote and protect the image of the College;
g) o.rve.their.duty to.the.college.and not,to the nominating authority; and
h) Owe the College a duty to hold in confidence all information available to them by virtue of their
position as a Board member.

J) THE SECRETARY
The Chief Principalap.pointed by the Teachers Service Commission is the Secretary to the Board and is
charged with the following responsibilities:
a) To provide guidance to the Board on its duties and responsibilities and on other matters of governance;
b) To ensure that the Board complies with its obligations under the law and the Basic Education Acq20l3
and all other relevant laws.
c) To assist the Chairperson of the Board in organizing the Boards activities:
d) To assist the Board with evaluation exercise;
e) To coordinate the governance audit process;
f) To maintain and update the register of conflict of interest;
g) To facilitate effective communication between the organi zationand the stakeholders; and
h) To carry out any other duties as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.
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K) CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) All Board members are required to:
i) Declare any interests that may give rise to potential or perceived conflict e.g. business

relationships or other circumstances that could interfere with exercise of obJective juJgment;ii) Declare as soon as they become aware that asubject to be discussed at a Board or commiffee
rneeting may give rise to a conflict of interest at ihe outset of the applicable meeting. The
conflicted Board member shall not participate further in the discusiion of that subje-ct, nor vote on
it. This is subject at all times to the provisions of the guiding laws rules & regulationsof the
College.

b) The Board shall evaluate all potential or perceived conflict of interest as declared and shall approve
such transactions with the College as may be appropriate.
c) A register of declared Conflicts of Interest shall be maintained by the Secretary.

L) CODE OF CONDUCT

a) The Board shall adopt a Code of Conduct for all governors and employees that addresses, among other
things, conflict of interest and which shall be reviewed and updated reguiarly. A summary of this code
shall be made available on the College's website.

M) RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

a) The Board shall recognize, respect and protect the rights of stakeholders and shall ensure equitable
of all stakeholders

) The Board shall provide stakeholders with information as is required under the applicable law and shall
mechanisms to ensure effective comrnunication with stakeholders

The Board shall have a stakeholder-inclusive approachand will be responsible for giving due
to the legitimate interests and expectations of the College'J stakeholde.i i, iir deliberations,
actions.

The Board shall establish effective communication with the College's stakeholders including the media
may be appropriate.

and

xxl1



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE- BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED 30 JI.INE 2021

8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The college operational and financial performance

The operational and financial performance of MoiTeachers College-Baringo is set out in pages 1 to 30.

ln the year under review, Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) affected the college operations

College compllance with statutory requirement

Moi Teachers College-Baringo financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section g1(3) of the
Public Finance Management Act of 2012. The college complied with statutory obligation of its employees from
time to time.

Total exposure

The college going concern is not in doubt, and has no on-going or potential court cases that may expose it into
potential contingent liability. Further the institution has complied with statutory obligation and requirements.
Further, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and management does not have a
significant going concern about the enti$s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting framework

The college adopts International Public sector accounting standards (lPsAs) Accrual basis in the 2020-2021
financial year for the first time.

The presentation of financial statements under review is in conformity with lnternational public sector
accounting standards (IPSAS) 1 on the presentation of financial statements. Additionally, each material class of
similar items has been presented separately in the financial statements While dissimilar items have been
aggregated only if they are immaterial on an individual basis lnternational Public sector accounting standard
(rPsAs 1(13)

The college financial probity and serious governance issues

During the financial year 2020-2021 there was no financial improprieties reported. ln addition, the college does
not have governance issues among the board and the top management including conflict of interest.

'1,.
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9. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
.EI\TWRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Moi reachers college-Baringo exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everything we
do' lt's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded on five pillars: putting the customer/citizen first,
delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our
achievements during the year under review.

1. Sustainability strategy and profile
The college tai:es iesponsibiiity fcr" the ir:ii:act:;f its actiriities ori cl;stc,:rers, empicyees, sl_rareh,riders,
coli-1i-ill'iiiities, ancl tire environment in all aspects cf cperaiions. Di-rring the yeai- iincer 

'e'ievrr 
the c,rliege

i'cililtariiv cr;nated 36rl' reanis of faoisca,rs, cic loci:eis anci chail's to the neighbouring prinrar,,y scho*ls, aiso
the college in collaboration with the area leadership donated old bed sheets to the needy and elderly
members within the community.

'iire ccllege strives io inlDi"r:ve tire rir-iaiilir of iiie i'ci its enirloriees and theii'far-niiies, a-s weii as __r,;cietv at. 1-, --,-icii B,i.

2. Environmental performance
The college has laid down a policy of planting trees within the water catchment areas and ensures 75%
survival rate.

3. Employee welfare
The college has a well-established staff welfare scheme where members contribute to the welfare through
check off systenr.

4. Market place practices-
Being a public lnstitution, there is the perception that there is a lot of resources to be utilised. The
reality is far from that and the resources we have are carefully managed to have the most impact.
To this end we carry out the following exercises to get the best partners for continued provision of
goods and services.

a) Supplier prequalification
We are guided by the Public Procurement and asset Disposal act,2o1,s and Regulations of 2o2a and
the PPRA guidelines on how to identify suppliers. This is an open and public process and takes into
consideration the reservations for youth, women and people with disabilities.

b) With our prequalified suppliers, we endeavour to meet our obligations on time so that we may be
able to sustain relations for future partnerships.

c) Being a national Government entity's the college makes a nationwide advert through newspaper
and use of the local administration notice boards, social media to market opportunities in the
College.

d) List of registered tenderers
The college also maintains and updates the list of registered tenderers as per the requirements of
PPRA.

5. Community Engagements
Moi Teachers College-Baringo was founded for public benefit, to promote teacher education. The institution is
open for all, irrespective of race, political or religious belief.
ln the financial year under review, the co;nmlinity L,enefitecr as beiow;

i) Donated 354 reams of fbciscaps. old lcckers and chairs to the neiehbouring prirnarlz schools"
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: i!ffi'ffl'#,:J*iHf["J.m'ff 
area leadership donated ord bed sheets to the needy and

iii) The communitv also benefitt rt"*ir. college dispensary in case of emergencies.*, 
,Cn:'*1,::Hffi:'#:.;;;us.;;;*,n".o-,i-i*i;;i*." couege rarm-and to drain s,t rrom

The college is committed in implementing community engagements in the next financiar year.
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10. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board members submit their repoft together with the audited financiat statements for the year ended 30 June
2021 which show the state of the College,s atfairs.

Principle activities

The principal activity of Moi reachers college-Baringo is Training of teachers.

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended 30 June ZIZL are set out on pages 1 to 30

Board of Management.

The Members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page V to lX above.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the College in accordance with Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act,2015 to carry out the audit of MoiTeachers Coltege-Baringo for the
year ended 3OJune 202tin accordance to section 23 of the Pubtic Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor
General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.

By Order of the Board

p.O.

Lorraine Mukoya
Chief Principal/Secretary to the Board
Moi Teachers College-Baringo.
29th September,2A2L.
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MOI TEA CEE^RS_C OLLE GE- BA RINGOANNUAL REP'RT aNo-Fnrlllcrai sirr.MENrs FoR rlrE 
'EAR 

ENDED 30 JL,NE 202r

section 81 0f the pubric rinance nnlg"'"nt Act, 2012 ana aasic eail.,[, o.i rr13 require the board members
to prepare financial statements in respect of Moi Teachers corege-Baringo, *ith give a true and fair view of the;ffi*n,,i;:'l"iI'::;J;5:li"t'rre rinanciair"., ,,0 the operain, ,",,,* or the entity ror that year. rhe

fi ::::fl T;:X*'ffiffi;;ffi ::t[Hil:5i:[::;ffffi:r*::1*:ml*t*rh[
The Board members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the coilge,s financiar statements, whichililJ;::;:i#':"Hyl'#;::*;;ff:;''"'':"ffiUJror and.,.i,i" # orthe rinancia, year ended on

(i) Maintainrng adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to
be efl

:::l #f,11'#ffisdf#i|t*;tr{1itrTf"h discrose wirh reasonabre accuracy at any time(iii) Designing' i*pit*""*g *4,'i*taining intemar contrors rerevant to the preparation and fair,11::iiffi:l,J!i1t*ff1l.ffiff;;;"u,a "^,,,;;";;;,iey are rree rrom materiar
!,y) Safeguardineil,. 

^r;Lrriirr," colege;(v) Select't'i, 
";il?:#krH[ffiry;!iill:1;:#,Ti:f,,1 ffi ;f"l*s,ancesThe board members accept resp-onsibility for the ."rr"r"{iirlncial statem"r,"_*ii.n have been prepared using

appropriate accounting policies supportej.by .."rronrbE."o ,*r"",luagemen; ,na 
".rir.aes, in conformity with

International Public^sector Accountinc ittno"os (rpsAs), .n, ,n the manner ..quir"o by the pubric Finance
Management Act' 2072 and Basic tJu]tt'on Act, 2013. The board members ,r" oiit,u opinion that the corege,sfl,H:l;:::Til: il:ilJ::;i:Xff;j"- or the state or Moireache,, .orr"r"-l.,.ingo transactions during theconfirm *re compreteness of the account,,l.:ili,TJ:,ilH::T#ilJ;:il::mn;:,""rr#mm" 

,llr:preparation of the entit/s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internar financiar contror.Nothing has come to the aftention of the board members to indicate that Moi-Teacrremain a going concern for at least *," *" twerve months from the date of this ,,ra"rlirll 
collegdBaringo wirt not

Approval of the financial statements

,X"Jl;THT,:J#ffiil:?Hl:::j::T:ff:[]ffi,X;fved by theBoard onB,hoct.b er,z(,.and signed on

.....,..,'Wb,
Prof. [\4oses K.Limo

Chairman of the Board

Lorraine Mukoya

Chief Principal/Secretary to the Board
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NAIROBI
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n h a n c i tt g A c c' o u n t a b i I i 4'

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MOI TEACHERS TRAINING COLLEGE -
BARINGO FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards, and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts
of the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Moi Teachers Training College
- Baringo set out on pages 1 to 31, which comprise of the statement of financial position
as at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance, statement of cash flows
and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and
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a
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 o'f the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. ! have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Moi Teachers Training College - Baringo as at 30 June,
2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Technical and Vocational Education and Training Act, 2013 and the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.27,525,525 as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements. However, the
balance excludes the value of land on which the College is located. Further, detailed
analysis of balances for furniture and fittings, computers, plant and equipment and work
in progress were not provided for audit.

ln addition, the statement of cash flows reflects purchase of assets balance of
Kshs.4,984,902 while Note 21 to the financial statements on property, plant and
equipment reflect total additions to property, plant and equipment of Kshs.S,191,640
resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.206,738.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.27,525,525 as at 30 June, 2021 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Prepayments Balance

The statement of financial position reflects prepayments balance of Kshs.11,167,656
under current liabilities. However, the detailed schedules indicating the name of payees,
receipt number and amount paid by each were not provided for audit verification. Further,
the prepayments are omitted in the statement of cash flows.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of prepayments balance of
Kshs.11,167,656 as at 30 June, 2021 could not be confirmed.

3. The Cash FIows Statement

The statement of cash flows reflects movement in working capital for receivables,
inventory and payables of Kshs.948,111, Kshs -448,541 and Kshs.369,045 respectively.
However, supporting documents for comparative balances used in calculating the
movements were not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables, inventory and
payables balances reflected in the statement of cash flows could not be confirmed.
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The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of Moi Teachers Training College - Baringo
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Other Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.23,245,920 and Kshs.15,383,842 resulting to
under-funding of Kshs.7,862,078 or 34o/o of the budget. Further, the statement reflects a
final total expenditure budget of Kshs.23,245,920 against actual expenditure of
Kshs.26, 0 44,059 resu lting to over-expend iture of Kshs.2,798, 1 39.

The underfunding may have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public, while
over-expenditure by Management was in breach of the law.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS !N USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF ]NTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Gonclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
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report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of a Risk Management Policy

During the year under review, the College Management failed to implement a Risk
Management Policy for the institution contrary to Section 165 (1) of the Public Finance
Management Act, Regulations, 2015 that requires a National Government entity to
develop risk management strategies, which include fraud prevention mechanism and a
system of risk management and internal controls that builds robust business operations.

In the circumstances, Management is not able to adequately evaluate, rank and prioritize
critical risks.

2. Lack of Audit Committee Meetings

Review of the Board attendance registers for the meetings held during the year revealed
that the Audit Committee did not meet in the year under review. This is contrary to Section
179(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, Regulations 2015 that states that the audit
committee shall meet at least once in every three months.

ln the circumstances, the College did not benefit from oversight role thereby placing the
resources of the College at risk of loss.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
College's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
the Management is aware of intentions to terminate the College or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.
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ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the College's financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall governance and
risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Aud itor-General's Responsi bi I ities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
College's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Report of the Auditor-General on Moi Teachers Training College - Baringo for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. ! also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the College's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the College to cease to
sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the College to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA , CBS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

28 September,2022

Report of the Auditor-General on Moi Teachers Training College - Baringo for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGI,. BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TFIE YEAR ENDED 30 JI.INE 2O2I

13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2021

The notes set out on pages 6 to 29 form an integral part of the AnnualFinancial Statements

1

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Tra nsfers f rom the National Govern m ent-gra nts 6 L0,79L,579.OO

Total Revenue from non-exchange transactions 10,791,579,0o

Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services- Fees from students 7 2,701,g4g.OO

Sale of goods 8 158,250.00

Rental revenue from facilities 9 1,004,105.00
Other income 10 728,O6L.0O

Revenue from exchange transactions 4,592,264,OO

Total revenue 15,383,842.00

Expenses

Use of goods and services 11 6,778,784.00
Employee costs 72 17,388,985.00
Board expenses 13 822,OOO.OO

Depreciation and amortization expense t4 6,260,997.0O
Repairs and maintenance 15 754,290.00
Covid -19 16 900,000.00
Total expenses 32,305,050.00
Net deficit for the year (16,921,209.00)



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE- BARINGO
4NNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rbn rrm YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONAS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Thb Financial statements set out on pages 2 to 5 were signed on behalf of the Management by:

wLD
1-

Prff. Moses K. Limo
Chllrman of Board of Governors

Dhte.

Rose Kimaiyo
BURSAR

ICPAK N

r . :. .

Lorraine Mukoya
Chief Principal/Secretary to the Board

oate....!:gtHli".,- Date r tl n l:s)-1-

2

assets

rrent Receivables from excha transactions

h and cash lents 17 6,381,425.00
18 t,321,753.00
19 5,395,790.00vables from non-excha transactions

es 20 1,060,295.00
current assets 14159,254.00

I on-current assets

nt and ul ment 27 27,525,525.OA

assets 41,684,799.00

ities

I liabilities
'l and other bles from exch transactions 22 5,574,A43.0A
f its from customers 23 15,000.00
r repayments t1_,1_67,656.0O
1 current liabilities
'l liabilities 15,756,599.00
I assets 24,929,090.00

( neral reserve 26 4,989,243.00
ital Fund 25 L9,939,947.00

Tptal net assets and liabilities 24,929,090.00
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MOI TEACMRS COLLEGE- BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JTINE 2021

1. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

At July 1, 2018

Revaluation gain

Transfer of excess depreciation
on revaluation
Deferred tax on excess
depreciation
Fair value adjustment on quoted
investments

Total comprehensive income

Capital/Development gra nts
received during the year

Transfer of
depreciation/amortisation from
capital fund to retained earnings

Dividends paid - 2018

lnterim dividends paid - 2019

Proposed final dividends

At June 30, 2019

At July 1, 2019

lssue of new share capital

Revaluation gain

Transfer of excess depreciation
on revaluation
Deferred tax on excess
depreciation
Fair value adjustment on quoted
investments
Total comprehensive income

5



nfiol rnacrERs coLLEcE- BARTNGo
4NNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021,l

I5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

5,395,799.00

2,701,949.00

flows from operating activities

nsfers mfro Gother rnove entm ent ity
dRen sof rvices- Feesflng from students

Rental revenue from facil ities

ities supplies and servicesutil

Compensation of employees

Sale of

Other income

Total Receipts

Payments

Board expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Covid-19

158,250.00

004,105.00

729,061.O0

9,988,052.00

6,779,794.A0

17,399,995.00

822,000.00

154,290.00

900,000.00
Total payments

26,OM,O'9.OO

(16,055,007.001

ation and amortization

cash

se

Net cash flows from activiti esoperating
less adjustment of items not involving movement of

(6,260,99L.00)

(9,795,016.00)

lncrease/Decrease in receivables

Movement in worki ng capital

lncrease/Decrease in inventory
948,11L.00

449,54L.O0
lncrease in trade payables

369,045.00

!,765,697.0o
investing activities

Changes in wo rking capital
cash flow from
Purchase of assets (4,gg4,go2.ool
Net cash flow from investing actiyities

14,gg4,g2o.oo,
Cash flow from finan cing activities

0.00

0.00
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

cashNet flows tnused nanfi actiyitiescing

Development funds

(13,014239.001

Cash and cash equivalents as at L July 2O2O lg,2g3,72g.OO

6,391,425.O0
4



MOI TEACEERS COLLEGE- BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JI.INE 2021

16. STATEMENT OF CO
ENDED 30 JUNE2O21

MPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR TEE YEAR

2020-2021 2020-2021 2020-

2027 2020-2027 2020-2021

Revenue
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Tra nsfers f rom govern ment 17,944,420.00
LO,7g!,579.00 (7,052,942.00]l

Rendering of services- Fees
from students 3,697,7AO.OO

2,707,949.0o (995,852.00)
Other lncome 1,703,900.00

729,061,.00 (975,739.00)Sale of goods
158,250.00Rental revenue from facilities

1,004,105.00Totalincome 23,245,92o.o0
15,393,942.00Expenses

Compensation of employees 77,944,420.0a
17,399,995.00 455,435.00Utilities supplies and services 3,697,700.oa
6,779,794.0a (3,091,094.00)Repairs and maintenance 0.00 154,290.00 (154,290.00)Board expenses 0.00 822,000.00 (822,000 .00)Covid-19 1,703,900.00

900,000.00 0.00Total expcnditure 23,245,920.O0
25,0!l4,Q5g.Oo 2,gg5,45g.OoSurplus

0 |10,660,217.00)

202
20:

60

73

42,

2.69

Budget notes

I
ffi#']j::T 

of Education delayed the remittance of the 3'd and 4ft quarrer grants for the period

2

J

27% of expected income from students were not received during the period. The arrearstherefore will be coilected before rerease ofpr certi frcates

The college expected under other incomes 1o raise f.rnds fom sale of lender forms andgraduation fees' Due to covid-I9 pandemic graduation *Lony was not held because studentswho were expected to sit for their exams in J=uly sat for irr, .*u* in November, hence affectingthe calendar of events' The ]vIinistry of Education ,atso aio-not select students for placement inteacher education colreges. Thus tenders were not floated.
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TTIE YEAR ENDED 30 JLiNE
2021

17. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Moi Teachers College-Baringo is established by and derives its authority and accountability from
Basic Education Act, 2013. The College is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is
domiciled in Kenya. The college principal activity is training teachers.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION2.

The financial statements have becn prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at re-valued amounts of cettain items of property, plant and equipmeug
marketable securities and financial instnunents at fair value, impared assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International it Utic Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires
management to exercise judgernent in the process of applying the College's accounting
policies.The areas involving a higher degree of judgernent or complerrty, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of MoiTeachers College-Baringo,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Public Finance Management
Act, the State Corporations Act, 2004, the Basic Education Act, 2013 and lnternational public Sector
Accounting Standards (lPsAs). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to
all the years presented.

6



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
,{.NNUAL REFORT AND FIN{.NCIAL STATEMENTS.F.'OR IHE YE-AR,ENDED 30 JUNE
2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

Other
-lmprovements
to IPSAS

a) Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate
references to IPSAS on impairment, in place of the current
references to other international and/or national accounting
frameworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, property, plant, and
'Equipriient.

Amendments to remove ffansitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of
Accnral Basis Intemational Public Sector Accoturting
Standards (IPSASs) was approved.

c) IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26, Impairment of Cash Generating Assets.
Arnendments to eDsure consistency of irnpairment guidance to
account for revalued assets in the scope of IpSAS 17, property,
Plant, and-[quipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible Assers.

d) IPSAS 33, First-tirne Adoption of Accrual Basis International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IpSASs).
Amendments to tlle irnplementation guidance on deemed cost
in IPSAS 33 to make it consistent with rhe core principles in
the Standard.

Applicable: l't January 2021:

lo state the amendtnents to the
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
,\NNUNL REPORT,\ND FINANCI.\L STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDFD 30 JUNE
202r

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in
the year ended 30 June 2021.

Amendments to
Other IPSAS
resulting from
IPSAS 4I,
Financial
Instrurnents

8

IPSAS 41:
Financial
Instrurrtsnts

The objective ofIPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial reporting of financial
assets and liabilities that will present relevant and usefiil information to useri offinancial
statements for their assessment of the amourts. timing and uncertainty of an entr6,,s
future cash flou's. IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements wth nrore usefi..rl
infornration tharl IPSAS 29. by:

'Appll,ing a single classification and measurement model for financial assets that
considers the characleristics ofthe asset's cash flous and the objective for rvhich the
asset is held;

'Applying a single forw'ard-looking expected credit loss model that is applicable to all
financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

'Applying an improved hedge accounting rnodel that broadens the hedging arrangements
in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link between an entity,s risk
management strategies and the accounting treafment for instruments held as part of the
risk management strategy.
(Sttp, the inryoct uf the stonilanl to thc entitl; if releyont)

Applicable: I January 2023:

IPSAS 42: Social
Benefits The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness and

comparabilitl of the information that a reporting entity provides in its financial
stalements about social benefits. The information provided should help users of the
financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:
(a) The nature ofsuch social benefrts pror,ided by the artitv:

(b) The key features ofthe operalion ofthose social benefit schemes: and
I The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity's financial performance,
financial position and cash florvs.

ille :;nlL!cu'L! :o i,trc eni rel

Applicable: lsJanuara 2023

c' the

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Arnendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
hedging and credit nsk which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendrnents to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accourlting fol
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classi$ring
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IpSAS

Applicable: I January 2023:

which were omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

t,



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
ANNUAL.REPORT AND .FINANCIAL S];\TEMEN.TS,FOR THE YEAR,ENDED 30 JUNE
2021

iii. Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other govemment entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment enfities are
measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining connol6fthe asset (cash, goods,
services and property) if the tansfer is free fromionditions and it is probabie that
the elonomic benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the College
and can he measttred reliahly. R.ecurrent grants are recognize-cl in the statement of
comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement
of fi_nancial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
usefirl life of the assets that has been acquired using ru"l, fllnds

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of seruices

Moi Teachers College-Raringo recognizes revenue from rendering of services by
reference to the stage of completion when tle outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours
incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labourirours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized
only to the extent that &e expenses incurred ar" re"ou.ruble.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to ttre buyer, usuarf on delivery of the good,
and when the arnount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probubl. tfrit ttre
economic benefits or service potential associated with tie transaciion will flow to
the College.

lnterest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective leld method, The effective yield
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset tu tlrat as;et's net tarrying amount. The rnethorl applics this yield to t5e
principal outstanding to detemrine interest income eactr perioa.

9



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
,\NNUN L REPORT,\ND FINANCI,\L ST,\TEMENTS FOR THE YE,\R ENDED 30 JLhIE
2021

NOTES TO THE FtNANCIAI STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SLIMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinued)
a) Revenue recognition (Continued)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and includedin ievenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for Financial Year 202}-2021was appro\€d by the Board on 6th
Attgust,2020. Subsequent revisions or additional appropnations were made to the
approved budget in accordance with specific approvali from the appropriate authorities.
The additional appropriations are added to thi original budget-by tire Coilege upon
receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the fina] buuget.

The College's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and
expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared
on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the ,Lt"*"rt
of financial perfonnance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cish basis. The amounts
in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A
comparison of budget and actual amotmts, prepared o, u .o-parable basis to the
approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison ofbudget and actual
amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustrnents to amounts in the financial statements
are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amourts on a comparable basis included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual arnounts and the actuals as per the
statement of financial perfonnance.

c) Taxes

Current income tax

Moi reachers college-Baringo is exempt from paying taxes as per lncome Tax Act Cap.47o

10



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
ANNUAL.REPORT AND,FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR,ENDED 30 JLINE2021

NOTES TO THE FtNANCtAt STATEMENTS (Continued

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
c) Taxes (continued)

Sales tox/ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sares tax, except:

i) when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation auttrority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

ii) Wren receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority isincluded as part of receivables or payables in the statement ofhnancial position.

d) Investment property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Thecar$ing amount'includes the replacement.cost of,components ofan existing investmentproperly at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
the costs of day-today maintenance of an invesnneit property.

Investrnent pJoperty acquired tttgugh a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fairvalue at the date of acquisition. subsequent to initii recognition, investrnent properties
are measured using the cost model and are depreciated orJr u p..ioO of yioo
Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or whenthe investnent property is permanently withdrawn from use and no fun,e economic
benefit or service potential is expected hom its disposal. The difference between the net'disposal proceeds.and.the.carrying.amount.of.ttre'asset.is,recognized.in.the 

surplus.ordeficit in the period of de-recognrtion

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment

'All'proper:ty,'plant,and equipment are stated.at,cost less accumulated depreciation.and.impairment
losses' cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. when
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of theplant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. where an asset is acquired in a non-
exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

l1
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TTM YEAR ENDED 30 JT.INE
2021

4 SUMMARY oF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING poLICIEs (Continued)
The annual depreciation applied on reducing balance basis are:

Asset

ln addition, financial year ended 30June 2021.; the college had the following assets which had not been
valued

Land 42.772 hectares
Buildings Hostels

Classrooms

Kitchen
Dining hall
Staff quarters - 4 Bedroomed house (1 blocks)

-3 Bedroomed houses (8 blocks)
-2 Bedroomed houses (24 blocks)
-Flats (8 blocks)

N/B: Buildings 2.5at6 (useful life of 40 years-straight line method)
l-and appreciates in value, thus not depreciated.

Motor
Vehicles

Furniture

and Fittings Computerc Books

Plant and

Equipment

2s% t2.5%
300,/6

2s% 12.5o/o

t2



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
ANNUAL,REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
202t

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SIIMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0 Leases

Finan,ce leases-are leases.that-trans&r urhstantiallythe errlir-e risks anrl benefits incirtental
to ownerstrip of the leased item to the College. Assets held under a finance lease are
capitalized at the commencement of the lease at flre fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. The ColGge-also
recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability
recognized is measured as the present value of the funre minimum lease payments at
initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in
surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the College will obtain ownership ofthe
asset by the end ofthe lease tenn, the asset is depreciated over the shorter ofthe esiimated
useful life ofthe asset and the lease tenn.
Operating leases are ieases that do not transfer substantially ail the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease palnnents are
recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

g) Intangible assets

Jntangihle assels acquired -separately .are initiatly reco.gnized at cost. The ccrst of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is flreir fair value at the date of
the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impainnent losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalizcd development costs, are not capitaliz*d and,
expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred. The usefirl life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

h) Research and development costs

The College expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual
project are recognized as intangible assets when the College can demonstrate:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be
available for use or sale

ii) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

iii) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

iv) The availability of resources to cornplete the asset

v) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

l3



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
,\NNUAL REPORT AND FINANCI,\L STATEN{ENTS FOR THE YE,\R ENDED 30 JLETE
2021

Following irutial recognition of an asset, the asset is cariedat cost less any accumulated
arnortization and accumulated impainnent losses. Arnortization of the urr.t U.En, when
developlnent is coinplete and the asset is available for use. It is arnortizecl or,ei'ilie period
of expected flittue benefit. During the period of development, flre asset is tested for
impairment amually with any impairment losses recognild immediately i, ,u.piu, o.
deficit.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i) Financial insfruments
Financful assets
Initirtl rec ognitio n nnd measurement

Financial assets within flre scope of Internalional Public Sector Accounting Standard
29 Financial Instnunents: Recognition and Measurernent are classified as financial
assets atfatr value througlt surplus ordeficit, loans and receivables. held-to-lratr6ity
investtnents or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Collegi
detennines the ciassification oiits financiai assers at initial,iecognition.

Loons and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payxents that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost usirrg the effecti,,,e
interest method, Iess impainaent. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into accolutt
any discount or pretniun on acquisition and fees or costs that u.. un integral part of
the effective interest rate. l,osses arising frorn irnpairment are recognLed ln the
surplus or deficit.

Heli-to-matarity
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detenninable paynents and fixed
matlujties are classified as heid to maturity when the Entity tras the positive intention
and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial ,neuuto.ro"nt, held-to-rnaturity
inveshnents are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest metliod, Iess
impairment. Alortized cost is calculated b1, taking into account any discoullt or
premitrm on acquisition and fees or costs that are in integral pa.t of the effective
interest rate. The losses arising frorn irnpairment are recognizedin surplus or deficit.

Impairme nt of linanc ia I assets

The College assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or an entity of financial assets is irnpaired A financial asset or a
entity of financial assets is deemed to be irnpaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or rnore eyents that has occtnred after the
initial recognition ofthe asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has a1
impact on the estirnated fi.rture cash flows of the financial asset or the entif of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of irnpairment may inciude
tlte following indicators :

14



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR .THE YEAR ENDED 30 JLII{E
2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLITITING POLICIES (Continued)

4) Financial instruments (Continue.d)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

i) Thc debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial
diffrculty

ii) Default or delinquency in interest or principal pal.rnents

iii) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization

iv) Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated ftihue cash flows
(e.g., changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate wittr defaults)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of Intemational Public Sector Accounting
Standard 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through surplus oi
deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The College determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

i)

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losies are
recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the effective interest method amortizafion process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Inventories

lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), thl cost
of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for, as follows:

Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion ofmanufacturing overheads based on the normal opaating capacity,but
excluding borrowing costs

15
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
,{NNU,^^L REPORT,\].JD FI].JANCI,\L STATEN,{ENTS FOR TF{E YE,\R ENDED 30 JL\TE
2027

NOTES TO THE FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING poLrcIES (continued)

4)Inventories (Continued)

After irritial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and ,et realizable
value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or depl,oyed at no
charge or for a nominal chuge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost
and curent replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estirnated selling price in &e ordinary course of operations,
less the estimated costs of completion and Gistirnated costs necessary to make the sale,
exchange, or disnibution.

Inventories are recognized as an exper]T when deployed for utilization or consumption
in the ordinary course of operationsof the College.

j) Provisions

Provisioils are recogirized when tlie College lias a preseiit obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resiurces
embodying econornic benefits or service potentiai will be required to settle ttre oUiigation
and a reliable estimate can be rnade of the amount of the obligation.

Wrere flre College expects some or all of a provision to be reirnbursed, for exarnple,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset orily
when the reimburseinent is virtually certain.

The expense telating to any provision is presented in tlre statement of financial
perfonnance net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

Moi Teachers College-Baringo does not recogntze a contingent liability but discloses
details ofany contingencies in the notes to the financial stater;enm, unlesi the possibiliry
of an outflow of resources etnbodving economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

Moi Teachers College-Baringo does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses
details of a possible asset whose existence is contingent on-the occrurence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain fllnue events not wholly within the control of the
College in the notes to ttre financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed
continually to ensure that developments are appropriately ieflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virrually certain that an inflow of econornic benefits or
service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and
tlie lelated I'evelllle at'e recogtuzed ili the financial stateureuts of t5e perioO i, wirich tle
change occurs.

4
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
ANNUAL REPOR.T AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TFIE YEAR ENDED 30 JIJNE
2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Na.tlrrc and pnrpose of reserves

Moi Teachers College-Baringo creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific
requirements. The College has Retained Eamings as a reserve and the pqpose of this is
to clear any pending bills accrued in the prior financial year once income is realized.

I) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Moi Teachers College-Baringo recognizes the effects of changes in accounting poliry
retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if
retrospective application is impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefi t plans
Moi Teachers College-Baringo provides retirement benefits in form of gatuity for its
employees...Defined contribution plans are post-empioyment benefit plans under which
an entity pays fixed contibutions into a separate entity (a frurd), and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions ifthe fund does not hold sufficiint
assets to pay all ernployee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefiti are
charged against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans otherthan defined+ontribution
plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the prqected unit
credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum piyments or
increased frrture contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. fhe
contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefitbbigation.

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in
foreign clurency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by
applytng the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlemert
of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the
period in which they arise.

)
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JIINE
202t

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plaut and
equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. -apitalization 

ceases when
constuction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of fi nancial performance.

18



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT,A,ND FINANCI,\L ST,\TEN{ENTS FOR TT{E YEAR ENDED 30 JTINE
2021

NOTES TO THE FINANC|AI STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING poLICIEs (continued)

p) Related parties

Moi Teachers College-Baringo regards a related party as a person or an entity with the
ability to exert control individually orjointly, orto exercisi significant influence over
the College, or vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related panies
and comprise the Board of Management, the Chief Principal and Senior Managers.

q) Service concession arrangements

Moi Teachers College-Baringo analyses all aspects of service concession anangements
that it enters into in determining the appropriate accormting treatrnent and disclosure
requirements. tn particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement,
the College recogni2ss that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulites flre
services. The operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it mrist provide

$em, gnd at what price. ln the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it ctntrols,
ttuguglt ownership, beneficial entiflement or oflierwise - any significant resiiual interest
in the asset at the end of the arangement. .Any assets so.ecogniled are measured at their
fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, tlie College also recognizes a
corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

r) Cash and cash equivalenb

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly liquid investnents with an original maturity of three months oi l"sr,
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant
risk ofchanges in value. Bank account balances include amounts heldat the Centrat garllr
of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the
purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short tenn
cash imprests and advances to authorised public officeis and/or instirutions which were
not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial year.

s) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended
or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

t) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact
on the financial statements for the year ended 3OJune 2021.

19
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JLINE
2021

5. SIGNTFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Moi Teachers College-Baringo financial statements in conformiry
with International Public Sector Accounting Standard requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustnent to the carr-ving amount of the asset or liabilitv
affected in futwe periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assurnptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting dal"e, that have a signif,cant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to the
carrytng amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The College based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circunstances
arising beyond the control of the College. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential ftiture use and value from disposal:

i) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the College
ii) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technolory and

processes

iii) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed
iv) Availability of funding to replace the asset

v) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management deterrnined an estimate based on the infonuation
available.

Provisions are measured at the tnanagement's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect
is material

20



MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
,\NNUAL REPORT ,A.ND FINANCIAL STATEIvIENTS FOR THE YE.\R ENDED 30 JTINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. (a)TRANSFERS FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT MTNISTRIES

7. RENDERING OF SERVICES

8. SALE OF GOODS

9. RENTALREVENUE FROM FACILITIES AND

Unconditional grants

Operational grants 10,791,579.00

Total government 10,791,579.00

Tuition and stores 70,LOz.W
Activ fees 249,686.O0
Board equi ment and stores 475,460.O0

rs, maintenance and i ments 62,657.00
Local Tra and Travelli 297,15L.0O

water and conserva 235,857.00
Medical fees 2t,472.0O
Examination fees 850,300.00
Motor vehicle rrs 52,377.OO
lnsurance 49,114.00

51,759.00
Teachi ractice 77,7!6.0O

uter studies 109,991.00
Rehabilitation fund 98,207.00

Total revenue from the of services 2,7O,-,8/,g.(n

Sale of milk 158,250.00

Total revenue from sale of 158,250.00

Rental fees 1,004,1.05.00

Totalrentals 1,004,105.00
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10. OTHER INCOME

11. USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

12. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Income from sale of tender forms 0.00
Hire of bus 133,294.00
Disposal of idle assets 389,850.00
Graduation fee 204,917.04
Total other income 728,061.00

Tuition ,equipment and stores 592,480.00
Activity fees 0.00
Boarding equipment and stores 2,656,342.OO
Local Transport and Travelling 1,238,78s.00
Electriclty, water a nd conserva ncy 972,918.OO

Medicalfees 50,778.00
Examination fees 850,300,00
Motor vehicle repairs L54,420,O0

lnsurance 124,185.00
Contingencies L38,576.00
Teaching practice 0.00
Computer studies 0.00
Rehabilitation fund 0.00

Graduation fee 0.00
Total goods and services 6,778,784.0O

Salaries and wages 17,94L,44O.0O
Hardship allowance 2,714,400.0O
Medical allowance 343,624.04
House allowance 7,762,200.N
Employer NSSF 117,600.00
Gratuity 509,725.00
Employee costs 17,38&985.00
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE.BARINGO
,I,NNUAL REPORT ,\ND FINANCIAL STATEN{ENTS FOR THE YE,\R ENDED 30 JTINE
2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued

13. BOARD ALLOWANCES

14. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

15. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

16. COVID.Tg

I

Board allowances 822,000.00
Total director emoluments 822,(xro.00

Propefi, plant and equipment 5,250,991.00
Tota! depreciation and amortizatlon 6,2il,99t.27

Repairs of Hostels 84,290.00

Fencing 70,000.00

Total repairc and maintenance 154290.00

Covid-19 expenses 900,000.00

Total expenses 9qr,000.00
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUMLENTS

17(a). DETA|IED ANAtyStS OF CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

18. RECETVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Current Receivables from Exchange Transactions

19. RECEIVABLES FROM NON- EXCTIANGE TRANSACTIONS
Current Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Current account 3,342,976.22
Savings account 3,034,799.95
cash in hand 3,650,00

Total cash and cash equivalents 6,381,425.17

a) Current account
Kenya Commercial bank 710364L743 3,2L2,692.57
Kenya Commercial bank 1103641816 94,525.65
Kenya Commercial bank 1232908398 35,758.00

3,342,976.22
Savings account
Kenya Commercialbank 7fi79A6423 3,034,799.95
sub- total 6,377,775.17.0O

cash in hand 3,650.00
Grand total 6,381,425.07

Current receivables
Student debtors 1,1"1.5,403.00
Rent debtors 206,350.00

Total current receivables 1,321,753.00

Current receivables
Transfers from other govt. entities 5,395,790.00

Total Current receivables 5,395,790.00
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
202r

20.INVENTORIBS

2I. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Boarding Equipment stores 214,612.OO

Maintenance stores 64,517.00

Teaching Eq uipment stores 738,424.OO

Electrical stores 20,750.00

Medical stores (Health unit stores) 21,993.00

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value 1,060,295.00

Asset Motor Vehlcles

Furnhure and

Fittings
Cdnputers Eooks

Plam ard
Equlpment

Capital

Work in
progre3s

Tot ls

Xshs lGhs Xshs Xshs Xshs Kshs

As at lstJuly
2020 12,811,552.60 1,853,!t00.m 4,624,0!|0.00 1,882919.m 7,418,075.m

Additions
320,000.00 4,47\640.4F

As at 30 June

2020 12,811,552.60 1,853,3{D.00 4,524,0:X).m 1,887,919.00 7,7T,O75.fi 4,47L,W.40 t3,786,517

Accumulated
depreclatlon as

at $utrm2t

Depreciation for 
I 3,202,880.65the year 237,662.50 7,387,209.ffi 471,979.75 967,259.37 0.00 5,260,991-27

Accumulated
depredatlm 30
June 2020

ilet Book Value
:t0 Jlrle 2O2l

9,gtn,67t.9s 1,621,637.50 ,2t6,e21.u 1,415,939.2s 5,77O,A15.63 1,87L,W.N 27,525,525-7t
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MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT ,\ND FINANCIAL STATEIUENTS FOR THE YE,A.R ENDED 30 JUNE
2021

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES F'ROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

23. REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS/STUDENTS

24. NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

25. CAPITAL FUND

26. GENERAL RESERVE

Trade payables 5,574,043.00
Fees paid in advance 1L,167,656.00

Total trade and other payables 16,741,599.OO

Fees refund 15,000.00

Totaldeposits 15,000.00

Surplus/deficit (16,055,007.00)

Add depreciation 6,260,991.00

Total deposits (9,795,016.00)

Capital fund brought forward as at L't Julv,2020 19,939,847.00

Total deposits 19,939,847.00

Balance broughtforward as at 1't luly,2020 27,9A9,45'J_.OO

Surplus/{deficit) for the year (16,921,208.00)

Total deposits 4,988,243.00
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE \EAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2021

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Retirement benefit Asset/ Uability

Moi Teachers College-Baringo contributes to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined
contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The College's obligation under
the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and is currently at ksh.400
per employee per month.

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The College's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and
effects of changes in foreign currency. The college's overall risk management programme focuses
on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential
adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The college does
not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers
with an established credit history.

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below

(i) Credit risk

The college has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale
financial investnents.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based
on internal or extemal assessment rn accordance with limits set by the directors. The
amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for
tlt-rubtful receivables, estimated by the college's rnanagernent based on prior experieuce
and their assessment of the current economic environment.

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the college has recognised in the financial statements is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The board of management sets the college's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

a
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(ii) tiquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who have

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the entity's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity
manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

{iii) Market risk

Moi Teachers college-Baringo has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing

the risk faced by the College on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness

of its internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will affect the College's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall

responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The College's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk

management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the College's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The College has transactional currencyexposures. Such exposure arises through purchases

of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. lnvoices

denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and

conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The entity manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and

recognised assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching the
same with expected payments.
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,{NNUNL REPORT AND FINANCT,II iT,ITEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JTINE

APPEND* I: pRoGREss oN FoLLow up oF AUDrroR REC,MMENDATT,N'

The college is submitting its financial records to the Auditor Generar for the first time hence the tablebelow is blank as no report has been issued in respect to all audit of Moi reachers college-Baringo,

Guidance Notes:

{,)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Use the same reference numbers as contained in the externar audit report;
obtain the "rssue/observation" and ,,management 

comments,,, required above, from finarexternal audit report that is signed by Management;

Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal point persons withinyour entity responsibre for imprementation of each issue;

lndicate the status of "Resorved,, or ,,Not 
Resorved,, by the date of submitting this report toNational Treasury.

Lorraine Mukoya
Chief Principal/Secretary to the Board 61,

Signature.......

Date 29th Sept.2021.
$ot goY'

P9.
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners

During the financial year 2021 ,there was no project funded by the state corporation.

Status of Projects completion

(summarise the status of project completion at the end of each quarter, ie total costs incurred, stage

which the project is etc)

I
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APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY NAME: MO! TEACH ERS COI.LEGE.BARINGO

Break down of Transfers from the State Department of

Financial Year 2020-2021

During the year under review, there was no inter entity transfers and therefore no amounts were
communicated and reconciled with the Ministry of Education.

a

Rose kimaiyo
Bursar

Sign...

Lorraine Mukoya
Chief Principal/Secretary to the Boa

Sign.....

s

33



^l'

.

ll

MOI TEACHERS COLLEGE-BARINGO
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATE}VIENTS FOR TFIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

2021

ENTITIES
APPENDIX W: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT

Recurrent
Ministry of
Education

RecurrentMinistry of
Education

RecurrentMinistry of
Education

RecurrentMinistry of
Education

Total Kshs

lii
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